



































Jonathan White

From:

Normal

Importance:

Subject:

Find out about separation policy

Thur 9/28/2017 1:00:00 PM

Start Time:

Thur 9/28/2017 2:00:00 PM

End Time:
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. ORR has the authority and permission to use the site for influx sheltering operations;

2. ORR has a contract (or grant) mechanism for shelter staffing and wrap-around services
which could be activated within 30-45 days;

3. ORR has assessed and validated the site to be logistically suitable for activation to receive
UAC within 30-45 days if required.

At Homestead, to maintain warm status, ORR’s wrap-around services contractor maintains
the site. Necessary functions include physical plant security to protect the site from unauthorized
entry, basic operational maintenance, and payment of utilities. For example, due to the high
humidity and temperatures in Miami-Dade County, climate control must be maintained in
buildings to prevent mold growth.
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To: Lloyd, Scott (ACF)

Cc: (ACF

From: (ACF) (CTR)

Sent: Tue 11/14/2017 4:12:08 PM
Subject: RE: agenda items for 3pm meeting

Good morning,

Please note that [ has a conflict with this meeting time and will not be able to attend.

Kindly,

- Office of the Director

General Dynamics Information Technology (Contractor)

Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR)
330 C. Street SW
Washington DC, 20201

www.gdit.com

GENERAL DYNAMICS
Information Technology

From: Lloyd, Scott (ACF)
Sent: Tuesday, November 14, 2017 9:55 AM

To: (ACF) (CTR)
c: [

Subject: agenda items for 3pm meeting

Scott
e [TIO
e PRM Memo

e  Pregnancy Policy
o PR Delegation Meeting

e Repatriation Update

e Arrivals/ Numbers
e LIRS investigation

e Capacity

e Homestead

e Family Separation
e |ESUpdate
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To: White, Jonathan (ACF 1
Cc: Lloyd, Scott (ACF) 1: MCALEENAN, KEVIN KGR
From: Homan, Thomas

Sent: Mon 12/4/2017 11:31:14 AM
Subject: RE: UAC referred subsequent to separations from FMUA

Got it. Thanks

From: White, Jonathan (ACF) [mailto:

Sent: Monday, December 04, 2017 6:30 AM

To: Homan, Thomas

Cc: Lloyd, Scott (ACF); MCALEENAN, KEVIN K

Subject: Fwd: UAC referred subsequent to separations from FMUA

Re-sending per Tom's request.

Jonathan White

Commander, US Public Health Service
Deputy Director for Children's Programs
Office of Refugee Resettlement
Administration for Children and Families

Begin Forwarded Message:

From: "White, Jonathan (ACF)" || NN
Subject: UAC referred subsequent to separations from FMUA
Date: 17 November 2017 16:30

EiKevin MoAleenan g B
cc: I - S - >/, Scot (AcF)

Kevin,

It was good speaking with you yesterday. Per your request, | am writing to provide details regarding the increase in referrals of UAC
resulting from separation of children from parents in FMUA.

While a small number of referrals each month have been separation cases, generally as a result of criminal apprehensions of
parents accompanying UAC, ORR has noticed a significant increase in recent months—both in raw numbers, and in particular as a
proportion of total referrals. (See chart below.)

In the attached spreadsheet, details including specific names and A#s for separation referrals received in September and October
may be found. This includes data on referring sectors. See “September” and “October” tabs. The spreadsheet is password-
protected due to containing PIl. password for the spreadsheet will follow in separate email.

As you can see from that data, minors separated by DHS from FMUA and declared UAC are often TAs (12 years of age and younger)
and in a significant number of cases are very young (ages 1-5). These UAC require specialized licensed beds different under state
licensure law from most licensed UAC beds, and the numbers of these very young UAC resulting from separations has on some
dates resulted in shortfalls of available beds licensed for very young TAs. UAC referred through separation generally have longer
length of care in ORR custody than other UAC.

If there are additional questions, please don’t hesitate to let me know.

2017
2018-YTD
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steps if any is ORR taking to address this issue and how can we as service
providers assist when we learn during the home study process that the biological
parents would like the child to return to their care in home country? (USCRI)

o At the last meeting, ORR mentioned that it would look into its ability to collect
mformation/data on children in its custody as a result of family separation due to
immigration enforcement by CBP or ICE. What has ORR determined in this
regard? (WRC)

o Has or 1s ORR considering establishing a mechanism or a policy to facilitate family
communication and other needs in the event of a separation? (WRC)

o How is ORR preparing for the Administration’s plans to separate families at the
border? What kind of impact will this have on ORR and how will ORR manage a
potential large increase of referrals? Has DHS consulted ORR on this policy
consideration and asked to provide a child welfare perspective? (KIND/LIRS)

o LIRS has found a common problem for kids seeking voluntary departure in order
to reunify with their parent prior to departure is delayed court proceedings. Even
when cases are expedited, the court date is often still many weeks away and ICE
decides it cannot wait that long. Would ORR be willing to do outreach to EOIR
about expediting these types of cases so that a child isn’t separated from a parent
in ORR custody for unnecessary long periods of time. (LIRS)

o What is ORR’s policy when ICE wants to take custody of a child that is in ORR
care? (VERA)

Bond Hearings: Could you share any status updates on the revised //ores bond hearing
notice? (NIJC)

Sharing Information with Local Communities Policy (5.9):

o Does ORR have any additional updates on information sharing under this new
policy? Have any further decisions been made on the particular manner in which
information will be shared under this policy? (USCCB & NIJC)

o Does ORR plan to update this policy to reflect the criteria that an individual or
community must meet in order to make a request for information sharing?
(USCRI)

Sponsor Screening: Is ORR considering any changes to its screening procedures of
sponsors? (LIRS)

Post-18 Plans: For children aging out of ORR custody, how has ICE worked with ORR
to consider post-18 plans and ATDs (as required by VAWA)? Are there certain regions
where this 1s more a problem than others? Can ORR share how many kids were released
to ICE custody upon their 18th birthday? (LIRS)

National Call Center: Can ORR share any recent data from the National Call Center? In
particular, we would be interested to hear about the call volume, type of requests being
made, and any demographic information available. (USCCB)
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e UC Portal: USCRI has raised concerns about the ability to access the portal. It continues
to run very slowly making it challenging to accept cases, upload closure reports, and
download documents. While we have received communication that ORR is aware of the
issue and is working to resolve it, we are seeking a timeline for when ORR expects the
portal to be functioning at full capacity. USCRI has also inquired about the possibility of
adding the minor’s birthdate on the referral tab to assist providers in accepting urgent age
out home studies and post release cases. Is this something that we can expect to see in the
new program year? (USCRI)

PalUAC-003178



To: white, Jonathan (ACF) ([ NG
From: | (HHS/OGC) (ACF)

Sent: Wed 1/31/2018 5:41:01 PM

Subject: RE: Quick HHS question

Got it!

From: White, Jonathan (ACF)

Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2018 12:40 PM
To: I (HHS/OGC) (ACF)
Subject: RE: Quick HHS question

No,- can handle this one. | could probably give the answer myself, but he makes it sound so much better than | do.

Besides, | alienated this group last week when | called BS on the DHS argument that the combination of the MOA and a new policy
to separate children from family units and designate them UAC would only require 4,000 ORR beds for the MOA and 9,000 for the
MOA plus family unit separation. So we can start cutting beds now! According to DHS’ estimates. So | need to be solicitous and
kind to them today.

From: [ (HHS/OGC) (ACF)
Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2018 12:38 PM
To: White, Jonathan (ACF)

Subject: RE: Quick HHS question

| have meetings through 4pm today, but | don’t think you need me for the call.

From: White, Jonathan (ACF)

Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2018 12:35 PM

To: I B (-C)

Cc: m I N (~Cr); I (HS/OGC) (ACF)
Subject: RE: Quick HHS question

If | set up a quick call for 1400 today, does that work for everybody?

From: White, Jonathan (ACF)
Sent: Wednesday, January 31, 2018 12:28 PM
To: : (ACF)

cc , S (C"); Y (++5/0GC) (ACF)

Subject: Re: Quic question

Yes—we sure can. It may be helpful to loop in the ORR policy team, whom [ have CC'd.

Jonathan

Jonathan White

Commander, US Public Health Service
Deputy Director for Children's Programs
Office of Refugee Resettlement
Administration for Children and Families
.

On: 31 January 2018 12:18, '[N DHS Redacted iwrote:

Gents — Good afternoon. Can you assist with the below? | found the below statement on your HHS
website and am wondering if one of you are available to discuss further. We are trying to get educated
on the below process as it pertains to UACs and their sponsors.
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Sponsors and Placement

Release of Unaccompanied Alien Children to Sponsors in the U.S.

In this determination process, immigration status information is requested of sponsors, and also
may emerge through the background checks. Since January 2014, care providers have been
required to enter this information into the ORR portal, a procedure that was optional until that
time. Immigration status information, however, is not used {o disqualify potential sponsors.
Instead, it is used to ensure the safety and well-being of the child by making sure that there is
an adequate care plan in place that takes all relevant aspects of the sponsor’s situation into
consideration.

Thanks!

Commander
CBP — MCAT

DHS Redacted

PalUAC-003624



Appointment

From: A S ( C) S
|
Sent: 2/27/2018 3:32:20 PM OQ)
To: A ) X o
Subject: FW: Separated family discussion ICE and CBP Qg) . QQ)
Location: EROLD Conference line A\
QA
Start: 2/28/2018 8:30:00 PM \Q Q)
End: 2/28/2018 9:00:00 PM \O) ('/_)
Show Time As: Tentative @ Q
¢ o
S
o &)
NS
> S
&> O
L
S o
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Message

From: I (~cF) (CTR)

Sent: 4/3/2018 2:25:22 PM

To: [T . R |

cc: I ) I S () D
Subject: RE: Intakes- Director's Report

Thanks ||| Gz

General Dynamics Information Technology

Division of Unaccompanied Children Operations (DUCO)
Office of Refugee Resettlement

pirect || GG

Fox [

I

CHENERAL DYNAMICS

Sh s pagre b Lacon AP S e
Inforrmation Techroiogy

From: N (ACF) (CTR)
Sent: Tuesday, April 03, 2018 10:25 AM

To: I (~CF) (CTR) >
cc: I (~CP) ; (cr)

Subject: Intakes- Director's Report

Good Morning [l

Below are the updates from Intakes for this week’s Directors report.

e  The average number of daily referrals from March 26 to April 01 is 176, which is an increase of 40
from the previous week’s average. The average number of daily discharges during this timeframe
is 119, which is an increase of 65 from the previous week’s average.

- Intakes has seen an uptick in referrals for minors with criminal histories.
e Intakes continues to support the field in enhanced identification and tracking of UAC separated

from a parent by DHS. Rates of separated UAC remain significantly higher than in previous fiscal
years.

Referral snapshot-March 26 to April 01

e Total referrals placed: 1237
o 13% tender age (0-12)
o 72% Male, 28% Female
e Country of Birth:
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o 51% Guatemala
o 30% Honduras
o 11% El Salvador (up from 7% the week prior)
o 3% Other
o 3% Mexico
e 8 UAC mother & baby groups placed
e 2 UAC were placed in a staff secure facility
e 21 UAC were reported as separated from a parent by DHS
o FY18 to date: 746 separated UAC

Thank you,
[ T

General Dynamics Information Technology
Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR)
330 C st., sW
Washington, DC 20447
I Office
I Cell

ax

SENERAL DDYNAMICS
intormation Teshnology
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MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT
AMONG
THE OFFICE OF REFUGEE RESETTLEMENT
OF THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
AND
U.S. IMMIGRATION AND CUSTOMS ENFORCEMENT AND
U.S. CUSTOMS AND BORDER PROTECTION
OF THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
REGARDING
CONSULTATION AND INFORMATION SHARING
IN UNACCOMPANIED ALIEN CHILDREN MATTERS

Parties

The Parties to this Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) are the Office of Refugee
Resettlement (ORR) in the Administration for Children and Families of the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services (HHS), and U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement
(ICE) and U.S. Customs and Border Protection {CBP) of the U.S. Department of Homeland
Security (DHS) {collectively “the Parties™).

Purpose

The purpose of this MOA is to set forth the expectations of the Parties and implement
processes for the Parties to share information about unaccompanied alien children (UACs) at
the time of referral from ICE or CBP to ORR; while in the care and custody of ORR,
including in the vetting of potential sponsors and adult members of potential sponsors’
households; and upon release from ORR care and custody. This MOA sets forth a process by
which DHS will provide HHS with information necessary to conduct suitability assessments
for sponsors from appropriate federal, state, and local law enforcement and immigration
databases, as required by law. Such information includes information to which HHS would
otherwise not have access and without which suitability assessments are incomplete. The
Parties recognize such information-sharing as a top priority requiring special attention to
ensure that the transfer, placement, and release of UACs are safe for the UACs and the
communities into which they are released.

This MOA does not address all necessary coordination between the Parties, nor is that the
intent of this document. It is not a substitute for, nor does it supersede or revise, the Parties’
responsibilities under the Memorandum of Agreement between the Department of Homeland
Security and the Department of Health and Human Services Regarding Unaccompanied
Alien Children, executed on February 22, 2016, which established a framework for
interagency coordination.
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IHL.

Iv.

Authorities

This MOA is authorized under, and entered into consistent with, the following provisions of

law:

A. Homeland Security Act of 2002, Pub. L. No. 107-296, §§ 102(b), 462, 116 Stat. 2135,
2142, 2202 (codified at 6 U.S.C. §§ 112(b), 279);

B. William Wilberforce Trafficking Victims Protection Reauthorization Act of 2008, Pub.
L. No. 110-457, § 235, 122 Stat. 5044, 5077-79 (codified in principal part at § U.S.C. §

1232);

C. Privacy Act of 1974, as amended, 5 U.S.C. § 552a;

D. Immigration and Nationality Act of 1952, as amended, §§ 103(a), 287 (codified at 8
U.S.C. §§ 1103(a), 1357); and

E. Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, § 589 (codified at 19 U.S.C. § 1589a).

HHS and DHS Respousibilities Upon Initial Referral

A. Imitial Referral and Transfer

1. At the time of initial referral, the DHS component (ICE or CBP) referring the UAC to
HHS (specifically, ORR) will electronically transfer the following information about
the UAC, to the extent such information is known and can be gathered in an
operationally reasonable manner, to ORR through the UAC Portal or by some other
appropriate method:

a.

b.
G
d.

Basic biographical data (e.g., name, date of birth, country of birth, potential
sponsor information);

Situational factors (e.g., health, pregnancy, travel companions);

Human trafficking indicators; and

Known criminal or behavioral issues, including arrests, criminal charges and
convictions, immigration history, gang affiliation or suspected gang
affiliation, and violence or behavioral concerns.

2. To ensure ORR has available information and supporting documentation to make an
informed placement decision, the apprehending DHS component (ICE or CBP) will
normally include in the Transfer Packet:

=

Copies of all identity documents;

DHS Form [-213, Record of Deportable/Inadmissible Alien;
DHS Form 1-216, Record of Persons and Property Transferred;
DHS Form 1-217, Information for Travel Document or Passport;

~
L
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e. DHS Form 1-770, Notice of Rights and Request for Disposition;

. DHS Form I-862, Notice to Appear or other charging document;

g. CBP Form 93, Unaccompanied Alien Child Screening Addendum (trafficking
information), if conducted;

h. Other applicable DHS, ICE, or CBP forms, if applicable, such as DHS Form
[-200, Warrant for Arrest of Alien; and

i. Copies of any publicly available federal, state, or local criminal records in the
possession of the apprehending DHS component (ICE or CBP) at the time of
transfer and appropriate available documentation describing any gang,
immigration, criminal, or other activity that may affect placement.

3. As expeditiously as possible, but no later than 24 hours after receiving notification
from ICE or CBP of a UAC needing placement at an ORR facility, ORR will send a
notification email notifying both ICE and CBP of the placement location. At a
minimum, the message will include:

a. Identifying information of the UAC at issue;
b. Facility name and location; and
c. Facility point of contact (name and telephone number).

B. ORR Care

1. While UAC are in ORR care, ORR will notify ICE or CBP of the following
situations, as expeditiously as possible, but no later than 48 hours afier the
occurrence:

a. Unauthorized absences. The ORR-funded care provider will contact the ICE
Enforcement and Removal Operations (ERO) Field Office Juvenile
Coordinator (FOJC) by telephone and provide notice by email.

b. Arrest of a UAC in ORR custody. The ORR-funded care provider will
contact the FOJC by telephone and provide notice by email.

¢. Death ofa UAC. ORR headquarters will immediately notify, by telephone,
ICE ERO.

d. Alleged or suspected fraud, human smuggling, human trafficking, drug
trafficking, weapons trafficking, or gang-related activity. ORR will notify the
ICE Homeland Security Investigations Tip Line by email and, for human
trafficking specifically (either by or of a UAC), ORR will also email the ICE
Human Trafficking Help Desk.

e. Abuse of a UAC in ICE or CBP custody. If ORR becomes aware of
allegations of abuse of a UAC while he or she was in ICE or CBP custody,
ORR will notify the appropriate DHS component (ICE or CBP) as required
under ORR policy.

f. Violence by a UAC while in ORR care. ORR will notify the FOJC of
incidents of physical violence or assault by a UAC in its care, including
incidents between a UAC and facility staff.

3
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g Change in level of care. ORR will provide notice by email to the FOJC of any
step up/step down to or from secure care for the UAC.

2. ORR will provide to the FOJC copies of all age-determination findings concluding
that an individual is 18 years of age or over, as soon as possible from the time of such
determination.

3. IfICE or CBP becomes aware of any criminal information (e.g., information
regarding gang affiliation) that it did not have at the time of initial referral and
transfer, ICE or CBP will notify ORR as expeditiously as practicable after becoming
aware of the information (using their best efforts to provide such notification within
48 hours), and provide supporting documentation, to aid in ORR’s consideration of
whether transfer of the UAC may be necessary.

4. To the extent permitted by law, and consistent with policy, DHS will report to ORR
the results of any investigations (including investigations commenced following
ORR'’s notification under Section IV(B)(1) of this MOA) they conduct that would be
relevant to ORR’s determinations concerning UAC care and placement. Such
information will be provided as expeditiously as possible, and normally within 96
hours of such information becoming available.

V. HHS and DHS Responsibilities Prior to ORR Release of a UAC to a Sponsor
A. HHS’s Responsibilities

1. Pursuant to 8 U.S.C. § 1232(c)(3)(A), HHS must make a determination that a
proposed sponsor is capable of providing for the child’s physical and mental well-
being. Such determination includes verification of the proposed sponsor’s identity
and relationship, as well as a finding that the proposed sponsor has not engaged in
any activity that would indicate a potential risk to the child. In all placement
determinations, HHS must ensure, among other things, that the UAC is likely to
appear for all hearings or proceedings in which they are involved, is protected from
smugglers and traffickers, and is placed in a setting where the UAC will not pose a
danger to himself or others. 6 U.S.C. § 279(b)(2). In order to fulfill its statutory duty
under 8 U.S.C. § 1232(c)(3XA) and to ensure that all proposed placements meet the
standards set forth in 6 U.S.C. § 279, ORR will take the following steps:

a. Prior to any release of a UAC from ORR care and custody to any sponsor,
ORR will request from ICE information about all potential sponsors and adult
members of potential sponsors” households, in order to aid HHS in
determining the suitability of a potential sponsor. Such information includes
the citizenship, immigration status, criminal history, and immigration history
(to the extent consistent with the Privacy Act of 1974). ORR will advise the
potential sponsor that this process is a required step in the UAC placement
process.
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B. ORR will provide ICE with the name, date of birth, address, fingerprints (in a format and
transmitted as prescribed by ICE from time to time), and any available identification
documents or biographic information regarding the potential sponsor and all adult
members of the potential sponsor’s household. ICE will then provide ORR with the
summary criminal and immigration history of the potential sponsor and all adult members
of the potential sponsor’s household to the extent available to ICE, consistent with the
applicable confidentiality provisions of the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA).

ORR will use the criminal and immigration history information provided by ICE in
ORR’s individualized determination of sponsorship eligibility.

1. ICE will ascertain only criminal and immigration history information. ORR will
remain responsible for searching various databases including public records, Sex
Offender Registry, National (FBI) Criminal History, Child Abuse and Neglect, State
Criminal History Repository, and local police records for all potential sponsors,

C. DHS’s Respoasibilities

1. Upon notice from an ORR-funded care provider that a potential sponsor or adult
member of a potential sponsors” household requires screening for criminal and
immigration histories and that ORR has received proper authorization from the
potential sponsor or adult household members, ICE will conduct the initial screening.
At a minimum, the review will include:

a. A biographic criminal check of the national databases;
b. A biographic check for wants and warrants; and
¢. An immigration status check of the immigration databases.

2. ICE will run the fingerprints of the potential sponsor and/or adult household member
and review the response received for any criminal activity.

ICE will provide the relevant criminal and immigration history information
(consistent with the applicable confidentiality provisions of the INA) on the potential
sponsor and adult household members within 72 hours, excluding weekends and
holidays, after ORR requests the information and provides ICE with the necessary
background information on the potential sponsor or adult member of the potential
sponsors’ household.

(8]

Severability

Nothing in this Agreement is intended to conflict with current law or regulation or the
directives of DHS, CBP, ICE, HHS, or ORR. If a term of this MOA is inconsistent with such
authority, then that term shall be invalid, but the remaining terms and conditions of this
agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
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Disputes

Disagreements between the Parties arising under or related to this MOA will be resolved by
consultation. Attempts to resolve disputes will occur first at the lowest level possible. Any
issues left unresolved after due consultation may be raised to the appropriate levels in the
Parties, or if necessary, DHS and HHS.

Funding

Each Party intends to bear its own costs in relation to this MOA. Expenditures are subject to
the Parties’ budgetary resources and availability of funds pursuant to applicable laws and
regulations. The Parties expressly acknowledge that this MOA in no way implies that
funding is to be made available for such expenditures and does not obligate the Parties to
expend any funds. Nothing in this MOA is intended to or shall be construed to require the
obligation, appropriation, or expenditure of any money from the U.S. Treasury in violation of
the Antideficiency Act, 31 U.S.C. §§ 1341-1519.

No Private Rights

This MOA is an agreement between the Parties and is not intended to, does not, and should
not be construed to create any right or benefit, substantive or procedural, enforceable at law
or in equity by any party in any administrative, civil, or criminal matter, against the United
States, or any of its agencies, officers, or employees. This MOA does not and is not intended
to place any limitations on the otherwise lawful enforcement or litigative prerogatives of the
Parties.

Effective Date, Modification, and Termination
This MOA will take effect thirty (30) days after signature by the Parties and will remain in
effect until revised or revoked in writing by mutual agreement of the Parties, or terminated

without cause by any Party upon thirty {(30) days advance notice in writing of intent to
terminate.

Approved by:

OY%/13/1%

épﬁin McAleenan Daté
ommissioner

U.S. Customs and Border Protection
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
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Fhomas D. I{oﬁm %4—3-2316

Deputy Dircctor and Senior Official Performing the Duties of the Dircetor
U.S. Immigration and Customs Enforcement
U.S. Department of Homeland Security

Qx——h.q Hm Q13018

Steven Wagner
Acting Assistarit Secretary for Children and Families
U.5. Department of Health and Human Services

et i st

Scott Lloyd Date
Director

Office of Refugee Resettlement

Administration for Children and Families

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

Date
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Y
330 C Street, S.W., Washington, DC 20201 | www.acf.hhs.gov \é\' é
P F
&)
By
TO: Jonathan H. Hayes, Acting Director, Office of Refugee Resetthem& éb
CC: Lynn A. Johnson, Assistant Secretary for Children and Famxbs \Z‘Q}
o™
FROM: -- Deputy Director for Children’s Progran@tl ﬁgf Refugee Resettlemen.
{5
DATE: December 18, 2018 NG
& »‘@

SUBJECT: Recommendation on ACF/ORR directive undeQ’lgnor um of Agreement § VI

L. ISSUE AND RECOMMENDATION C)Q) ((Z\

unaccompanied alien children (UAC) since implementiitg theMemorandum of Agreement (MOA) in June
2018. This increase presents child welfare and oper nal iderations for ORR.

S
The Office of Refugee Resettlement (ORR) has obser é@ r@case in the median length of care for

Before the MOA, ORR conducted robust non-@éme i¢c background checks on all sponsors and their
household members. ORR obtained ﬁngerpn'n@nd ducted biometric background checks on Category
1 sponsors and their adult household memb ‘heghdeemed appropriate. ORR obtained fingerprints and
conducted biometric background checks o Category 2 and 3 sponsors without exception, and obtained
the same for such sponsors’ adult house@ﬁ meMmbers when deemed appropriate.
N

After executing the MOA, ORR reya§ed t‘h@rovisions of the ORR Policy Guide regarding background
checks. The revisions require utaive sponsors at all levels—and all of their adult household
members—to provide ﬁngerpn'@ and @Sergo biometric ICE background checks.

As part of its continuing, oxq‘ing seview of the program and operations, the ORR staff evaluated whether
the expanded backgroundchecksyof adult household members under the MOA have yielded new
information that has engbléd to identify child welfare risks that ORR would not have found under
the prior policy. The,@l concluded that the expanded background checks have not yielded such
additional mfonndt @tifv child welfare risks from June 2018 to date.

At the same u@g, th gf{R staff concluded that the current, increased median length of care has a

correlation t eti quired for all adult household members to finish submitting fingerprints to ORR.
The ORR t that the current, increased median length of care is at a level that may present child
welfarﬁden&uons for some children. The ORR staff’s opinion is based on their own child welfare
trainin ence, and the child welfare literature on congregate care.

Q’KO Q 1
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The ORR senior staff’s recommendation, after weighing these child welfare considerations, is ORR
issue a directive pursuant to MOA § VI to modify the ORR Policy Guide—and, by extension, OA—
to enable ORR to complete individualized suitability assessment of sponsors without obtaini ng

from all adult household members in appropriate cases. : C_)

There are at least three reasons to accept this recommendation. First, the backgrou ec hat ORR
will continue to conduct are robust and likely to identify any material risks to econd, the
modification should enhance child welfare by reducing length of care. Third, the m wa@,n will increase

individualized decision-making and operational flexibility in the field.' R\ &(D
I BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION O )

O
Before the MOA, Category 1 sponsors and all of their adult househob'm bers underwent public
background and sex offender background checks without exception. ﬁem fingerprinting and
biometric background checks if there was a documented risk to t fet the UAC, the UAC was
especially vulnerable, or the case was referred for a home study. C ('e_gor%ponsors also underwent child
abuse and neglect (CA/N) checks if the case was referred for ashomestudy or a special concern was
identified. Their household members underwent CA/N checkQ)r s @ concerns as well.

The prior policy for Category 2 and 3 sponsors and their ad@mﬁe{xold members was different. Category
2 and 3 sponsors and all of their adult household membergy derfuént public background and sex offender
background checks without exception. Category 2 3 sponsors also underwent fingerprinting and
biometric background checks without exception. L But, r adult household members underwent
fingerprinting and biometric background checks only if ?e was a documented risk to the safety of the
UAC, the UAC was especially vulnerable, or l referred for a home study. Category 2 and 3
sponsors also underwent CA/N checks if the c wa '&erred for a home study or a special concern was
identified. Their household members underu@s checks for special concerns as well.

Under the MOA, ORR obtains ﬁngerpn f all-potential sponsors and adult household members (as well

as other personal identifying mforma provides them to ICE. ICE then conducts a biometric
immigration and criminal backgrou hec d provides the results to ORR. The ICE immigration and
criminal background checks are uct s an additional child protection measure, on top of ORR’s

standard background check pm(é

Information obtained Ilzrou% Qpap\ background checks of adult household members

The ORR staff cvaluamdﬁg) resélds of the biometric ICE background checks on adult household members
since June 2018. For those.sltecks that identified immigration or criminal history: approximately 80%
identified immigrati ls$approximately 8% identified history related to driving under the influence:
and approximately 8% iden fied history related to traffic violations. The remainder does not fit within a
single catez,oryc) ral, nonc of the history for adult household members was automatically

disqualifying %r sponéb's under current ORR policy.

O 3
> W2
‘Z)\o

"Ina the%RR senior stafT"s understanding is that U.S. Customs and Border Protection supports this operational
directivg’and @ Immigrations and Customs Enforcement does not oppose it.

QS Q 2
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| have spoken with ORR senior staff, as well as members of the ORR field staff who use this infou‘é\lﬁon
when making suitability determinations. In general, they are unaware of any cases in which the Bfometric
ICE background checks yielded new information about adult household members that enabléd’ORR to
identify new child welfare risks. The ICE biometric background checks have generally corrc ate&hat
ORR has learmed through pre-existing methods. Q— O
%, O
The ORR field staff, however, has informed me that biometric ICE background checlﬁall éﬁgoﬁes of
sponsors are helpful for suitability analyses because they confirm the sponsor’s ider@/" (O
Q

%

Increase in median length of care and related child welfare considerations AQ) o3

ORR has conducted a data analysis and found an increase in length of care fo&(\?ﬁﬁxrgw to Category
I sponsors. Median length of care for a Category 1 discharged UAC waé:\-\ b

e 20 days from November 20, 2017 to January 5, 2018; (§ (§

e 22 days from March 30, 2017 through June 6, 2018 respecl@y;\zﬁd

e 51 days from June 7, 2018 through September 30, 2018. \}K N

UAC referred to ORR during the week of July 7, 2018 had a@’Qedi' njength of care of 73 days.

This data is consistent with ORRs experience during M Cﬁnpéemation. The volume of fingerprint
subjects increased immediately after the initial implemgitation®ef the MOA in June 2018. HHS then
dedicated more resources to digital fingerprint sites, $\ ch ure sponsors” and adult houschold
members” fingerprints, and the Program Supporté)@ ce@ C), which process fingerprints.

Unfortunately, the length time which all adult buseh members take to submit their fingerprints to
ORR has not decreased materially since impléine 1. There appears to be a correlation between that
length of time and the current increased 1 el&n length of care. The ORR staff’s best programmatic
Jjudgment is that the length of time take ad@ ousehold members is affecting ORR’s completion of
suitability analyses and. by extensioné’re m%@hn length of care.

~

The increase in the median lengﬂ(éﬁar@esems child welfare considerations for ORR. In ordinary
cases, where a suitable sponsor {$«availgble and discharge presents no risks to the health or safety of the
UAC or the public, ORR’s ex@ien is that the best practice in child welfare would be to discharge the
UAC within 30 days of ad iOUSﬂ ordinary cases, ORR generally does not recommend keeping UAC
in care for longer than 6Q%days”. (Dhis is because family-based settings tend to produce better child

N 5 s
welfare outcomes ove, riods of time.

ORR’s approach is-ghigned With child welfare literature on congregate care. Over the last ten years. a
consensus has ged{gdt children are better served in family-based settings. As a result, the number of
children livin%n cg@gate care has decreased nationwide by 37 percent.’

“

s O

? There are@'c{mr '\nany instances where a UAC remains in care beyond 60 days - or longer - because a suitable sponsor

cannot b, nd.
* Chil s Burgau. “A National Look at the Use of Congregate Care in Child Welfare.” May 13. 2015. Available at:
hllpo WW ,.@M!\ gov.sites detaull files cb cheongregatecare_brief pdt.

Q\
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The Children’s Bureau of ACF analyzed a number of data elements from the Adoption and Foster@f.é
Analysis and Reporting System and found that children at risk for congregate care are more lik(@p
have a mental health diagnosis or a behavioral problem. S

(%)
ORR’s current median length of care, as of November 30, 2018, is 90 days for all dischar, Q?ande’@
reduction towards 30 days would be more consistent with best practices in child wel fare\_ é\

IMl. SPECIFIC RECOMMENDATION ON ACF/ORR DIRECTIVE \Q @Q)

The ORR senior staff recommends that ORR direct the ORR staff to modify the 0 Guide—and,
by extension, the MOA—to enable ORR to complete individualized sultabl}ﬁk nts of sponsors
without obtaining fingerprints from all adult household members in appropn ase

ORR would continue fingerprinting and biometric ICE background chec ~A'\[’o TZ;tegories of sponsors.
ORR staff would, however, have the discretion to conclude a suitabilit ihdtion for a sponsor—and
release the UAC to that sponsor—pendmg receipt of fingerprint back@md ck results if other records
are sufficient to confirm the sponsor’s identity.

ORR would otherwise follow its prior policy on ﬁngerprintuQ?d ground checks of sponsors and

adult household members. \Z\
ORR would implement the operational directive immed; ]y @addmon during the next 45 days, the
ORR staff would evaluate the current provisions of the Rélicy Guide related to appeals of suitability
determinations, and make any recommendations for er révisions as appropriate.
s
DECISION - N
| S \&O
A T . .
Approved Dlsapprovcd;’_ More Information Required

/7;//\,_/ {0

i
Q 1D /2018
Jqp}athan H. Hayes Q/ @

S &°
,~§’6}
N
o@§
Q(g’
O &

to conflict law or regulation or the directives of DHS, CBP, ICE, HHS. or ORR. If a term of this MOA is
inconsistdnywith authority, then that term shall be invalid, but the remaining terms and conditions of this agreement shall
remai bull foreg and effect

S
Q@ Q 4

* The MOA emEI%thls type of operational directive in § VI, which states that “[n]othing in this Agreement is intended
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Attachments: By S

)
ORR-ICE-CBP MOA Regarding Consultation and Information Sharing in Unaccompanied Al&§)
Children Matters (April 13, 2018). %) Q)O_)

ORR Policy Guide, Section 2.5.1, Criteria for Background Checks (revised June 7, 201 8).\' rrgcpeolicy]

ORR Policy Guide, Section 2.5.1, Criteria for Background Checks (revised Apﬁl'@k@@g’ [previous

policy] £
& &
MOA Impact on Category | UAC Length of Care and Sponsorship (Novemb s 20)8Y.
Citations to relevant child welfare literature on congregate care y@ \29.
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